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CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel). " I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for December 5t \ 2005. For the record, we have the Vice-Chair of
the Committee, G. Riki Hokama, present; as well as Members Carroll, Johnson, Mateo,
Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane. Excused from this afternoon's meeting is Committee
Member Anderson. Good afternoon, Members. We have three items on our agenda this
afternoon. We will first start, without objections, with BF Item Number 59, amending
the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget, the Bond Fund, adding the Boundless Playground,
Pa Pa'ani.
ITEM NO. 59:

AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET (BOND FUND, ADDING THE
BOUNDLESS PLAYGROUND - PA PA'ANI) (C.c. No. 05-345)

CHAIR KANE:
Members, this Committee is in receipt of County Communication
Number 05-345 from the Managing Director, transmitting the following. First, the
proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget for
the County of Maui as it pertains to estimated revenues, capital improvement projects,
and total appropriations, operating and capital improvement projects. Members, the
purpose of this proposed bill is to amend the Fiscal Year '06 Budget by adding the
Boundless Playground to the Bond Fund, Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District, in
the amount of 714,000 dollars. Second, Members, we have received--and it's on your
desk this afternoon, or you should have it on your desk--a revised proposed bill
entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending Ordinance Number 3280, Bill Number 36 of
2005, relating to the issuance of the general obligation bonds of the County of Maui.
Members, the Chair will direct your attention to Page 2, that the correction was made
where you see the brackets on the 3 million and 50 thousand dollars. It was placed in the
wrong area. That would have provided them... that money to be spent for anything
underneath that. So we made the change as it accurately is reflected in the other
ordinance to where that 3 million and 50 thousand dollars is for the Waiehu Golf Course
Maintenance Building. And then what the addition is, is Number 2, the Boundless
Playgrounds, Pa Pa'ani, for 714,000 dollars. Members, we have one person signed up to
testify this afternoon. So before I go any further, those of you signed up to testify, we
provide you with three minutes, and another minute to conclude your remarks. Please
state your name for the record. And if you do represent an organization, we'd like to
know that as well. And for those of us here in this Chamber, if you have a cell phone or a
pager, we ask that you turn it to the off or silent mode so that we can avoid any
unnecessary distractions to this afternoon's meeting.
We have with us
Ms. Patricia Rouse?
MS. ROUSE, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Rouse is our first person to testify. Good afternoon, Ms. Rouse.
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.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. ROUSE: Good afternoon, Chainnan Kane and Council Members. I represent Challenge
Maui, which is a... a nonprofit. .. group to support access for the disabled. And I did
send Chainnan Kane a background packet in the mail. I don't know if you received it. I
have two other background packets in case anyone needs. If you are satisfied that you
have that infonnation, I just want to present the letter that we wrote to you ... so
that. .. you can get the ... the intent of it. First of all, we are ... and have been in support
of the Pa Pa'ani Committee and the playground. They asked us to help clarify the
accessibility and community issues for the playground.
And here are our
recommendations. We reviewed ...
. . . a sheet. .. C-1, dated 9/11105 for compliance with ADA. .. Parks and Recreation
Consent Decree requirements and Section 504. These are the plans for the playground,
presented on 10/18/05 to a meeting of volunteer business community builders, park staff,
and supporters. The agency that. .. that reviews plans for the County, DCAB, is not
required by the ADA to check the playground for accessibility. And so that's what we
did. In fact. . .it was not our committee, but it was a Federal accessibility consultant.
And what her...her. .. cursory review showed was that, first of all, there wasn't enough
accessible parking for the playground, that the entry ramp exceeds the slope of 1 to 12;
the cross slope exceeds 2 percent; the drinking fountains don't have wheelchair access;
there's no wheelchair route to the raised stage area or the ... viewing area. She found
more than 34 major ADA errors. Under Section 504 of the Department of Justice
Consent Decree, the County is required to provide access to all County programs and
services based on the unique mission of that program or service. In accepting the ... the
Boundless program as it is, the County will have eliminated the mission of accessibility
for this proposed playground. Since... October, the volunteer community group has
decided not to coordinate building the park. The Parks and Recreation Department has
submitted two amendments. And those are the ones that you are considering today. We
have a couple of questions for you, and then a solution. First of all, how do we know the
play equipment presently under consideration will meet compliance when Boundless has
already made major mistakes with the designer. .. and there are ... there is no review of
accessibility? How will the County pull together a well-organized volunteer community
build organization to get this ... playground in place or get it started by March next year?
And if there's no structured community support group like Pa Pa'ani.org, how can the
County go forward? To see what the County has ... what the community organization has
done, we're referring you to their website--papani.org.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
CHAIR KANE: ... Please continue.
MS. ROUSE: The ...we're asking also, the question: what assurances are there that this project
will not end up being a waste of our tax dollars and another ADA lawsuit target? We
suggest the County start over. .. and incorporate the community and the children's input.
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We suggest the playgrounds follow the mission of the community build groups so that it
will be universally accessible to children of all abilities, adults, and seniors. Since all
parks built by the County are required to go above and beyond ADA compliance, we
expect to see the access board best practices ... guidelines for playgrounds incorporated
into every plan and alteration to our parks. Under Section 504, the County's prohibited
from denying access to people with disabilities in all of their programs and services. So
we're asking you to, instead of using "Boundless", to contract "Shane's
Inspiration" ...whose mission is for universal inclusive access for childrens [sic], adults,
and seniors. They also have a website. Their mission, of course, is develop .. .is to
develop universally accessible playgrounds that allow children with disabilities to play
side-by-side with their able-bodied peers. The vision for an accessible park is a vision
that includes everyone. We're sure the County wants to put this playground to be done
right, done correctly the first time. Thank you for the opportunity, for letting us ... share
this information with you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And if you can, please, again, state your name for the record.
MS. ROUSE: I'm Patricia Rouse.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Rouse.
MS. ROUSE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Members, do we have questions for Ms. Rouse this afternoon? Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much for coming.
MS. ROUSE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: With regard to the ... details of the information that you did
provide us and the report you referenced... one question I have is because it appears that
there's at least a couple of alternatives--there's Boundless ...the Leathers programs, and
there's Shane's Inspiration. Are these the only.. .I guess, alternatives, if you would, that
offer an emphasis on universally accessible playgrounds or are there others?
MS. ROUSE: I think that that offer a package. And that's what. .. has been appropriate for other
community groups--to purchase the package so they don't have to do it step-by-step on
their own. And I'm not positive there are others, I don't know that information. But I
know these are the ones that have been used by more communities than others. So those
were the recommended ones. I'm sorry I can't offer you the names of others.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to the cost factor-MS. ROUSE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I attended a disability conference where this particular
subject was discussed. And it was stated by, I guess, some of the people who helped
prepare this report--monetarily, it should not cost the kind of money that we're looking at
in order. .. to construct a totally handicapped accessible or universally accessible
playground. Do you have any knowledge as to whether that's accurate or not?
MS. ROUSE: It has been done in other communities without buying a package. And it's been
done with wooden materials. But, again, it's the accessibility of wooden materials here
or the shipping cost of getting what you need in here. I would assume it would be the
same as getting in the plastic ... from another source. So .. .I really can't answer that any
better than that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. ROUSE: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Rouse?
· .. Members, then as a reference point, she was on the December 1st.. .item that you
should have. It's in your binders ...with the "Challenge Maui", with the picture of Maui
and a little wheelchair... shown in it.
· .. Okay, hearing no further questions, do we have anybody else signed up to testify at
this time?
· .. No? Is there anybody here in the audience that has not testified that would wish to
testify? Now is your opportunity to testify before the Committee.
· .. Okay, seeing nobody approach, Members, at this time, the Chair's gonna close public
testimony for this afternoon's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Testimony is now closed .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair will direct to, your attention to BF Item Number 59, our
first item on the agenda. With us this afternoon, we have our Budget Director,
Mr. Ginoza ... as well as from the Parks Department, I think we have our Deputy here this
afternoon, Mr. John Buck, as well as Mr. Pat Matsui who is part of the Parks Department.
Mr. Ginoza, we'll provide you with your opportunity for opening remarks. And you
can.. .introduce anybody who would like to provide with more, additional information on
opening remarks. Go ahead.
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MR. GINOZA:
Thank you, Chair.
Members, the appropnatlOn for the Boundless
...
of
714,000
included
in the Fiscal Year 2005 Budget will lapse on
Playground
December 31, 2005. The addition of the, this project in the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget,
together with the bond authorization, will allow the Parks Department the time needed to
complete this project for the children of Maui. We respectly... respectfully request your
favorable consideration for the proposed Budget and bond amend... amendments. And
we have ...representatives from the Parks Department here to discuss the project. So I'll
defer to them.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Matsui, if you can, please identify yourself for the record, and if you
have any additional opening remarks before we open it up for questions.
MR. MATSUI: My name is Patrick Matsui, I'm Chief of Parks Planning and Development.
· . . We are ... committed to making this project a totally handicap accessible--play
equipment and all of the surrounding facilities, parking lot, sidewalks ... everything.
· .. We ... are at the point now where our plans are pretty much completed as far as the
playground. We've opened bids on the playground equipment. But. .. you know,
because of this funding ... thing, we're not. .. we're not able to award the contract
until. .. the approvals are granted.
· .. Well ...you want me ...me to get into some of this handicap issues or ...
CHAIR KANE: '" Chair-MR. MATSUI: ... should I reserve comment on that-CHAIR KANE: --has provided you with the opportunity for opening remarks, so if you'd like to
include that in your opening remarks, please feel free to do so, Mr. Matsui.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. MATSUI: Okay ...
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. MATSUI: '" What can I say? Urn ... the comments from Ms. Grouse [sic] is ...really
taking me aback. I have never met her. She's never sat down with us to discuss the
plans. I'm sure if we sat, had sat down and talked about it, we would have clarified some
Issues ...
· .. about the 31 ... deficiencies in the .. .in the plans.
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· .. You know, I, I don't know specifically...what she's talking about. But, but I know
that we are committed to making it. .. accessible. We did submit our plans to the DCAB.
A lot of it had to do
There was ... a lot of comments that they had.
with ...misunderstanding of, of...what. .. what was shown in the plans.
· .. Some items we had put as "not in contract", did not mean we'd, we would not build
it. It was gonna be built, but it would not be done by a contractor.
· .. As you know, we are gonna be using volunteer help. We're looking at the unions to
do it. So a lot of that is shown "NIC", is gonna be done by, with volunteer effort. So ...
· .. like a sidewalk, for instance, where it showed "not in contract" ...
· .. you're correct, it's, it is needed... for handicap accessibility. So if you were to read
"not in contract", then you would, you could suppose that that's "not compliant". But if
you were to find out that it's gonna be built by volunteers, then it would be compliant.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... You finished?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we're open for questions. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And this would be, Pat, in regard to the comments that
were made this morning, but also looking at the information which was provided. And
you've given, basically, a summary that some of the things may not be included because
it was anticipated that the volunteer force would be actually performing the work.
Therefore, it would not be "included" within the bid to the contractor. But I guess my
primary question would be because there seems to be a fragmentation now of some of the
original community-built participation and .. .I guess some dissatisfaction, let's just call it
what it is ... {laughter} . .. with the project and the fact that some of the components
could not be included that the community felt were really key when they were going
through the design build--how do you see this ... either being resolved or. .. do you see
this creating an additional cost that we're now not gonna have the volunteers that we
thought we would, therefore, we're gonna increase the amount of money that we're
gonna have to spend? Could you address that a little bit, Pat?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. MATSUI: ... You know, going back to ... a year ago or more ... you know, this starter, this
project started as the Boundless Playground.
And ... you know, the Boundless
organization has ... their credentials as far as providing...playgrounds for the
handicapped is unquestioned. And I think they did come to the Council, did a
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presentation, showed you some ... a presentation on what they've done throughout the
United States. And that concept was sold to the Council.
· .. Later on ...the community group came in and they had wanted to bring in Leathers.
Which.. .I think if you're familiar with the Haiku project. .. you know, that was a
Leathers project. So when they approached us, we said, okay, you know, let's combine
the two and, and we could have the best of both worlds--we could have a Leathers project
with, with the Boundless, they could collaborate and come up with the best of both
worlds. Well. .. we went through one, one year of planning, going through the
community, but. .. what had happened was the Leathers organization had pushed the
Boundless aside. And, and what you, what ended up was your typical Leathers project.
· .. And, again, with Leathers, you know, it's not accessible. It's accessible to the point
of getting up to the playground. But once you're in the playground, it's not accessible. If
you look at the Haiku one, you can get up to the playground, but once you're in there,
you're not going anywhere. Not a person on a wheelchair.
· .. The woodchips that they use for the surfacing .. .is not acceptable to us, okay, for the
simple fact is that, 'cause it's loose material. When it's first put in, it meets accessibility
requirements, it meets ... the impact absorbing requirements. But once it's being used,
because it's loose under your swings and the path of travel where you have a lot
of. .. used .. .loose materials run away. So then it, then you have dips and you don't meet
accessibility requirements when this happens. And you also don't meet the impact
absorbing requirements for safety. Okay, the only way it would work is if you had
somebody there daily raking it and also having a ready supply replenishing it all the time.
And, you know, we're dealing with a public facility .. .limited manpower for Parks. We
cannot do it. And ...there's no volunteer organization that can do it. You know, I cannot
see anybody giving up their fulltime and going there everyday. It doesn't happen. So,
you know, as a practical matter, that woodchips was rejected. And so what we're going
through right now is we're converting to the impact rubber surfacing for all of our
facilities. But, you know, it's expensive, so we're doing it slowly. One of the big costs
for this one is that rubber surfacing. That, the cost of that is, like, half of the cost of this
project. It costs as much as or more than the playground equipment itself. But it's
something that we need to do--one, for the handicap accessibility, and the other for
safety, and for the long-term ... use of, of the playground. So, anyway...we did go
through that one year when we went with Leathers and we ended up as a Leathers
project. So we said, you know what, the original intent was not made, so we looked at
the time--and we had a time-line, too, because come December, the funds would lapse.
So .. .last year early on, we decided--at the end of last year, we decided we would go
back to the original concept. We did approach the group and said where we were gonna
do. Their concern was it wasn't that they wanted Leathers or any other, but they wanted
a Hawaiiana theme--Legends of Maui. So we sat down with them. We brought our
consultants back from the mainland. She reoriented the group on where this ... project
was going, the design concepts and also ... you know, they had wanted to put in
legends ... the different legends. They're talking about putting lizards and ... you know,
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the mo'o and ... and canoeing and, you know, all of that stuff. One thing was made clear
was that the playground equipment itself would not be made into these components, but
the area surrounding it--like your entries, along the walkways, your landscaping,
orientation--we could ... accommodate that. So with that, we started doing the design.
We added in some picnic ... pavilions. We had a M3 structure...that would house these
interpretive signs talking about the legends. And the design of that also was in a
Hawaiian theme. So ... we had gone along... with the group. And then I think it was
sometime in September when I had gone back to them, we were ready to go out to
bid...we had presented that to them, and at that time, they said, well ... they didn't feel
they wanted to be involved in it, so they were backing out. So in the meantime, though,
we had looked, talked to the unions ... the different labor unions--I mean, the carpenters,
the masons, electricians. And they had said that they would support us wholeheartedly
and, and be willing to do the volunteer effort in putting that together. Uh...now with
this, without this volunteer group who is basically unskilled people ...we still feel with,
there's other groups out there that we could approach and get their assistance during the
build. Because ...
. . . for the playground equipment, part of it is that it be a community build. So what the
manufacturer's done is he's supplying the materials, he's gonna have somebody on-site
to make sure that we do it correctly, the installation. And then... the volunteers can come
out and put it up. We got the masons who's gonna do the concrete work, which is the
concrete pad and the sidewalks. And the carpenters would look, were gonna be doing
the ...the ... entry hale and the two picnic pavilions. And the electricians were looking at
doing the outdoor lighting. So ... you know, we feel with all of that group, that, that we
can ...make it go. And especially we did open bids, so we know how much...where we
are as far as the playground equipment. So we feel with the funds that's left...we can
complete the project along with the volunteer effort. And you know, it, it's .. .it's a huge
volunteer effort, but you know, we've had their commitment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And with regard--you know, and I appreciate what you're
sharing. With regard to other money that was originally placed--I think it was something
like 600,000 dollars or. .. you know, it's was quite a bit of money that was in a grant. I
believe it was from one of the foundations ...through Mr. Yokouchi, when he did the
presentation. Is that money...has that been used up or is this going to be part of it, or are
now we paying for the whole thing?
MR. MATSUI: That would ...we haven't used that money. That was money that we were
looking at getting. Okay? And, and that was the ...uh ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Weinberg.
MR. MATSUI: ... Weinberg Foundation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right, right, right.
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MR. MATSUI: You know, that was--maybe, Mr. Yokouchi is in the audience there ... you
know, he would know more about it. But it's money that we have not gotten yet. Um-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So I'm trying to understand this 'cause what we've
got before us is the 714,000 dollar figure which would be .. .I guess, providing an
extension for what we currently have in the Budget. So that this time .. .line, I guess, or
the, the time period would not expire for the use of that money. And then in addition to
that would be whatever other money is available through this grant. So what I'm trying
to understand, Pat, is without the volunteer labor, but you're saying kind of that this other
volunteer force would, I guess, compensate for some of that. Trying to understand--what
are we looking at total cost for this one playground ...with it. .. with all of the issues with
regard to the handicapped accessibility being addressed?
MR. MATSUI: Okay, with the 714 that we're asking for, we, we'll build, and with the volunteer
help, we will build the whole, the total facility. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So then, the other money.. .is not included at all?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct, it's not included at all.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That ...
. . . that part of it is still, I guess, what disturbs me because originally the premise upon
which we were considering this was that we would have money that would come in. And
sort of what the County was doing or what the Council was doing was trying to match
that money or either doing it through labor or creative means where we could get other
grant money. So ... that part of it, I guess, you know, the rest of us will decide. But I
appreciate you sharing that with me, Pat. I still have some concerns about. .. you know,
these bad feelings that exist in the community. And I, you know, accept your explanation
of it, but essentially the maintenance is gonna be a concern because then that falls on the
Parks. Falls on you guys, annually, to maintain. And that's gonna also increase the cost.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Questions, Members?
... Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Matsui .. .in regards to the
cost--I, I know there were two sites that we were looking at. .. a couple years back. One
was that we were gonna do a lot of site work, which was the area adjacent to
the ... YMCA. In the site that we presently.. .looking at or where this construction is
gonna be ...the cost difference, is it because of the site work that is not being done ... as
compared to ... on the first proposal as compared to the existing site?
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MR. MATSUI: ... Uh... oh, yeah, you're correct in that the initial site we were looking at
was ... formerly the Keiki Zoo site which was, which is next to the Botanical Gardens.
And that site is .. .if you're familiar with it, it slopes. There's a steep slope on it and it's
totally undeveloped. And ...we would have had to do some massive grading, also ...we
would have to build a restroom and a parking lot. The site we're at is relatively level.
You have the existing.. .ironwood trees that's there already that. .. protects the site from
the prevailing... winds. And .. .it's got a parking lot and it's, we've got restrooms there.
So you know the cost of restrooms and a parking lot was a really big factor in, in the
change. And, and that was that much less that we had to spend money on.
. . . Ifwe could, Mr. Chairman...Mr. Yokouchi is in the audience. Maybe he could talk a
little bit more about the alternate funding that, that. .. Councilman Johnson was asking
about.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Before Mr. Yokouchi comes down ... this is for the
Budget Chair. In, in regards to the ... Weinberg Foundation grant, is that a matching to
the County... dollars?
. . . In other words, we put in 700-plus-thousand dollars ... going back, again, two
years ... that the County would have to match the, the grant funding from Weinberg?

CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared to respond, Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: No, I'm not.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And just the Chair's .. .if the Chair's memory.. .is correct, I think originally,
numbers we had at 800,000 and that Weinberg was gonna come in with another 300,000,
for a total of 1.1 on proposal at that point in time. And things have since evolved--site, as
you've brought forward, and I think the discussion regarding the restrooms and the
parking lot component along with the ... (end a/tape, start IB) . .. some changes. But as,
as stated ...we do have Mr. Yokouchi if there's a question regarding the alternative
funding. If, without objections, if Members wanna know that information, Mr. Yokouchi
is here to provide his comments specific to that. Is there any objections to having come
forward?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.
CHAIR KANE: Mist-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: And you have the floor, Mr. Pontanilla, so we'll do that once you're done with
your questions.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any objections, Members, to having Mr. Yokouchi come forward to provide
some comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Y okouchi, good afternoon.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR KANE: ... And, Ms. Johnson, if you'd like, as the Member who brought that question
earlier, I'll give you the floor to provide-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: --the questions. And if you can, before you go on to any other questions that
you might have, we'll allow other Members-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --ask along the same lines for clarification ifit's not clear. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Yokouchi. With regard to the funding from
the Weinberg Foundation, I know that you very generously got this grant. And if you
could just expound on where that stands right now because... as it relates to the
discussion we're having right now.
MR. YOKOUCHI: Thank you, Mrs. Johnson. First, it's not based on any matching funds. That
was an independent grant by the Foundation. The problem there has been that since my
last conversation with them, the whole Board has changed. They have a lot of new
members now. So we have to resubmit a new request. The last time was very informal.
They just talked to the Hawaii Trustee, Mr. Alvin Awaya. And he's the one that
promised to advance the 300,000 once we get started. Those days, they worked very,
very informally. But today, they have a.. .I guess not to down this ... profession, but they
have lawyers now-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. YOKOUCHI: --on this Board of Trustees. So they all, you know, need to dot the i's and
all that. So they asked me to resubmit again. But the last time was all verbal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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MR. YOKOUCHI: As far as ...their intent, I'm sure it's still the same that they, they believe in
trying to help the handicap and also the underprivileged. I wanna clarify this point about
this group that's supposed to be helping us.
· . . There are basically three members who we depending upon to gather all the
volunteers--and which they did. But. .. they were basically very, very strong with the
Leathers design and methods. But we found out that. .. and went along with them
· . .(inaudible) . .. contracted the Leathers people to do the design, but what happened was
that the Leathers design does not really fully involve the ...the handicap. And all our
presentation to this Council has been that we'd like to do a handicap accessible
playground. The word "boundless" means it's open to all kids because they discovered
that if you do a playground just for the handicap, it's not a real world. The
handicap ...would not be exposed to normal kids and vice versa. But Boundless
combines all the kids so that. .. the kids who are handicap will play with normal kids.
And the normal kids will understand the handicap much better. It makes a more real
situation for them because the playground is their world. As we ... go to work, children,
their "play" is their work. So they found out through all this experience that it doesn't
work by separating these kids. So anyway...when the County decided not to go with
Leathers, some of the volunteers got very disappointed. So they have said that they
cannot continue because they wanted to do the Leathers way. But we couldn't because
we're bound by our first ...
· .. goal which was to provide a handicap accessible playground. And this is what we
presented to the Council. So we wanna do that. So since we found out that the Leathers
people have not designed--and we gave them a lot of time to do that--they have not
designed a playground that will make it handicap accessible, the County had to change
and we had this deadline that we're trying to meet again. So ...that, unfortunately, we
had to let the ... Leathers people go. So with that, some of the volunteers, they're very
disappointed. But since then, we have enlisted the help of lot of the trades people. In
fact, some of them are here in this audience. And they have, they've been very, very
generous and kind in...volunteering their... their people. And the bulk of the work in
this new design that's mentioned by Mr. Matsui, is on the foundation, which is the
concrete padding that is needed to place these rubberized padding above it. And the cost
in that area is huge. And that, I think that's part of the reason why Leathers have avoided
doing that kind of groundwork in this playground. So the cost seemed very, very high to
do the, this playground, but we feel that's the only way because fundamentally it has to
be accessible to both kids--the normal and ... and the handicap. But we have to also be
realistic about safety. So ... and safety is a very, very important factor. In fact, we have
found out way back that fundamentally Hawaii's playgrounds are one of the most unsafe
in the nation. So, anyway, we have a long way to go and this is one of those things that,
the design-wise, that will bring us really up to the standard that. .. these Boundless people
work on. Now I'm sure there might be some ... flaws in any design, but as mentioned
earlier, Ms. Rouse and her people, if they would come to us and show us if there's any
problem, we would be more than happy to look at it. Because we wanna do it right. But
lot of this letters or statements made by them has not been with the ... meetings with us
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and discussing all the points with our people. But we welcome them to make any
comments. And if they can show us where we could improve it, we'd be more than
happy to do it. And maybe I oughta mention again--the Boundless people that I
mentioned.. .is a nonprofit organization. It's not a profit, for-profit company. It's a
nonprofit group. And it was inspired by this lady that lost her son who was crippled.
And she used to take him to the playground and watch the other kids play. And when she
saw her son... after her son died, the only way she could use her time was going back to
the same playground and watch the other kids play. And then she saw these other kids in
wheelchair doing the same thing what she did with her son. And she believe, that's where
she had the inspiration that maybe, you know, something oughta be done there. So
Boundless people is not for-profit. It was made with basically the handicap in mind, and
again improving on that was they make it open to all kids so that it makes for a much,
much more realistic and healthy environment. I hope I answered your questions. Are
there any questions I could clarifY? I'd be very happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Yokouchi. And essentially what
I was trying to determine is about the monetary part that right now, according to what
you said--if I understand it. ..please correct me--it is not secured funding, it is something
that you would have to resubmit a grant to and there's no assurance that that money
would be there.
MR. YOKOUCHI: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. YOKOUCHI: I'm confident that we'll get it, though. But it's not assured ... because as I
mentioned, we talking about a new board. But I'm sure their philosophy and ... goals are
the same as the past board. But they do it in much more formal way, so they asked me to
resubmit it again.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Yokouchi while we have him at the ...rostrum?
... Hearing none, Mr. Y okouchi, thank you for being a resource person this afternoon.
MR. YOKOUCHI: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members ... continued line of questions for the Department. .. or
Administration? Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Question for Mr. Matsui.
Regarding your remarks ... that I guess .. .is it Ms. Rouse from the Challenge Maui--they
had never brought to your attention these alleged 34 major ADA errors. Have you
received any report of any kind as well from, I guess, the consultant that, I guess, did this
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report? I guess it states here in the December 1st letter. .. Challenge Maui's General
Services Administration Federally certified accessibility consultant, there's no report, as
well sent to, to your Department?
MR. MATSUI: We did get a response from the State DCAB. And.. .1 saw a copy of that. And,
and we did talk to our consultants and, and it was ...things that can be resolved. And
there was points of clarification that, you know, the, what I said, the "not in contract"
kind of provisions ...those type ofthings.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Okay.
And with these, I guess, suggestions or
recommendations from that consultant, do you, do you foresee any more, any requests for
funding, additional funding for the Boundless Playground in the future, or the Pa Pa'ani?
MR. MATSUI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chairman, when it's appropriate, I'd like to ask
Ms. Rouse from the Challenge Maui organization to, for a couple of, a couple of
questions if possible, when it's ... appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the Chair doesn't have a problem to ask if Members have any
objections. We can ask Ms. Rouse to come back forward again to respond to some
additional questions in light of the discussion. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Rouse, if you can state your name, again, for the
record, please? Thank you.
MS. ROUSE: Patricia Rouse.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Ms. Rouse. I
make reference to your December 1st letter where it states, I guess, in the second
paragraph: the Pa Pa'ani committee asked us, I would presume Challenge Maui, to help
clarify any accessibility and community issues. I'm just trying to get clarity here. I'm
hearing on one hand that there was no, I guess, interaction between the two
organizations-MS. ROUSE: Yes, I think--
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can you-MS. ROUSE: --that we ...we did not involve ourselves with that at the beginning. We were not
invited, and no one sort of knew about it. I think that's what happened. And then when
the, when the ... the County, the community-build program started having feelings that
were not. .. not the way they were before, they did ask the consultant. .. who was a
member of our committee, to take a look at his in a professional Federal ADA view. So
that's the first time anybody looked at it with that ADA view. And only on request. So
she was not involved in that. She's got a fulltime job, she ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. ROUSE: '" you know, doesn't just volunteer for that kind of thing. She's paid to do that
for the, for the Federal government.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and for the record, who was the consultant for your
organization?
MS. ROUSE: Her name is Jean Tessmer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Tessmer. Okay.
. . . After hearing the comments from Mr. Yokouchi and Mr. Matsui, are you now willing
to sit down and get together with the Pa'ani [sic} group?
MS. ROUSE: Oh, certainly, yes. I think that would be the appropriate thing to do.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. ROUSE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Rouse? I had just a couple, and I,
and 1-MS. ROUSE: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: --failed to ask you before you left the rostrum. Was ... because the letter that
was signed by your President-MS. ROUSE: Yes?
CHAIR KANE: --pointed out on the first page, they provide (A) a partial review, and you listed
six items. And then, second, under item, letter B, the review yielded more than 34 major
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ADA errors. Is that some place, is it. .. someplace else that's available that can be
forwarded to this Committee-MS. ROUSE: I feel certain-CHAIR KANE: --as far as the specifics?
MS. ROUSE: --that it can, yes. I think we were interested in getting out at least the basic
information in this letter to the Council.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. ROUSE: And a fuller review can be done, a complete review can be done at any time. So,
you know, I'm not sure if that's a, something that's gonna be done for free, though. I'm
not sure if you've budgeted for an ADA review of this park. I don't-CHAIR KANE: Well, I guess my question would be, would revolve around the validation of the
34 major errors that have been identified by-MS. ROUSE: Yes-CHAIR KANE: --the cursory-MS. ROUSE: --good idea. Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Is that something that's available that we can get forwarded to this Committee?
MS. ROUSE: I would feel certain that if... she noted 34 errors, that you could know exactly
what those were, yes.
CHAIR KANE: Great. And, and... Members, without objection we'd, we'd love to have that-MS. ROUSE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: --part of our docket here this afternoon.
MS. ROUSE: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Ms. Rouse, Members?
... Hearing none, thank you very much-MS. ROUSE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --for your time.
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... Mr. Molina, any further questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No further questions.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, Mr. Pontanilla, I'm sorry I know you had the floor prior,
so ... forgive me for not recognizing you back again to the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just for my own curiosity...how
many volunteers would be required other than the skilled workers?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Matsui, are you prepared to respond?
MR. MATSUI: ... Uh... yeah, I'm not, I'm, Ijust can guess. But I would say 20 ...
. . . for, just for the erection of the playground.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: About 20?
MR. MATSUI: It's, it, you know, this, this isn't gonna be a one-day thing. And, and we're
gonna be phasing certain things.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. MATSUI: So ... you know, I think the, the biggest, again, was pouring the concrete. That
would be the biggest effort. But erecting the playground, that would be the unskilled.
And, and that would be ... probably one or two days. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fine. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, I know you wanted to be recognized earlier. I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... No, it was more ... to Mr. Ginoza. If. . .ifhe's already completed
the update on the ... debt service adjustments, that I would hope he would have that
presented to the Committee for ... for review by us as we prepare to get into the, the
next. .. upcoming year's budget preparations, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Just an FYI at this point, Mr. Hokama? Are you, are you requesting that
information now or... ?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would, well, I let me, maybe let. . .let me ask Mr. Ginoza 'cause
I'm assuming that part of their support for this request is that they have already made
their calculations on the current debt service plan.
And.. .if it's already been
included ...then we already have it as part of the Committee's communications. But if
it's changed.. .I will like to be made aware of that adjustments, please.
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?
MR. GINOZA: Um, I'm ... the response is "no". We haven't done the ... the bond ...
. . . the bond plan yet for 2007.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... But you have it for '06.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. GINOZA: ... Uh... so ...what is the question again? I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, let me ask, put it the question this way, then--have you made
adjustments to the County's debt service program since we are adjusting, now, the ceiling
on the '06 budget for bond?
MR. GINOZA: No, I have not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that something that Bond Counsel hasn't requested to be updated?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. GINOZA: ... No, I don't think so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Well, I think that will be helpful for, for this Committee and our
Members to see how we gonna repay our debt and whatever adjustments so that as we
prepare to review your next upcoming budget. .. since we are aware of some very
high-priced... potential CIP projects ... that we can also start preparation of...what
Chairman Kane will set as some of our, the parameters that we will be working under.
So I would ask when your office is ...
. . . has that information available, if you would forward it? 'Cause I would think you
would need to prepare that for Bond Counsel in preparation of the bond float anyway.
MR. GINOZA: I will.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Um ... and, and I'm not sure if this would be a question to
you, Pat, or to Mr. Ginoza, but. .. with regard to the comments made by Mr. Yokouchi
and the money from the Weinberg Foundation, because this is not secured, is that why
you're asking for the full amount of the 714,000 dollars? Or are you not even
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considering that we might possibly qualify for 300,000 of grant money to help defray the
cost for the project?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. MATSUI: '" You're asking, is, what if you appropriate what we're asking for and we
build it and then we get another 300,000 dollars?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Essentially, that's what I'm asking, but I just wanna know if
· .. (laughter) . .. if you've taken that into consideration when you're looking at this. Or
are you just wanting the whole amount now and then hoping that you can get that other
money later on? I'm not clear.
MR. MATSUI: We're looking at just depending on the bun, bond money to substantially
complete the project. Okay? The 714,000--we're saying give us that money, and we'll
complete the project. Now, if we get another 300,000, there's you know, some items that
you know, whenever you have a tight budget, you start pulling back on the ... "kind of
nice to have, but not absolutely necessary items". And, you now ...we, we could spend
that money on that. You know, there's some items we could add into a playground that,
that'll make it even a better playground.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, and, and ...maybe I'm going off on a different tangent,
but based on what Mr. Yokouchi is telling us, because there's a very good chance that we
would be able to get that money, I mean, my personal thing is if we put in for 414,000
dollars .. .{laughter}. .. as opposed as the 714, generally what happens is the
Foundations realize, okay, you're short 300,000 dollars, so we'll come up with the
additional money that you need to complete it. But if it's all advanced, then no need to
go to any foundation. That's kind of where I'm coming from--that if you do it all
· .. (laughter) . .. in all likelihood, they're never gonna give .. .(laughter) . .. you the
money .. .'cause you've already go it. That's the way most of the foundation groups will
work--it's where you have a shortfall and you need the additional money. So I'm trying
to figure out why you're asking for the full amount ifthis other amount is still out there.
· .. Anyway, I guess that's a rhetorical question, Mr. Chair .. .(laughter). .. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Actually, Ms. Johnson, I think it's a good question. And perhaps, without
objections, and I .. .I would ask if Mr. Yokouchi, if you'd like to .. .I have maybe another
question to follow up on the ... on the funds or the Weinberg request. If you're available
and without objections, Members, I'd like to just follow up on that 'cause I think it's a
good line of questioning that needs to be clarified. Thank you, Members, without
objections.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Yokouchi reapproached the podium.
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CHAIR KANE: ... Thank you, Mr. Yokouchi. I guess the question that wasn't asked that
maybe should be asked at this point is, is it the intentions to have an application
submitted for funding? And some context or some background--although we're asking
for 714, because as was stated by Member Johnson and the Members are aware of, we
don't have secured funding, alternative funds, is it still the intent to ask for assistance
from the Weinberg Foundation on this particular project?
MR. YOKOUCHI: Yes. What we have planned right now is still way short from what the
community group wanted. They wanted more pavilions. Besides the playground, there
are families involved. So they wanted to build more hales and pavilions, benches, chairs.
You know, so ...we're far from what everybody wanted to see there. So hopefully we
could get additional funds from the Weinberg people. But the 700,000 that we seeking
from the County is vital because we want to do at least as complete at possible this first
part of this playground. But we can see many other things that need to be done in the
future. And hopefully that ...we could get some funds from the Foundations [sic} and we
could finish those things, also. But. .. right now I'm confident that we'll have
sympathetic ears from the Foundation. But like everything else, we're not making the
decision so, we cannot speak for them. So I think it's essential that we have this money
so we could finish, do the proj ect at least in this stage.
CHAIR KANE:
VIew ...

Mr. Yokouchi ... as far as the parameters from the Foundation's point of

. . . is it your understanding that the money that you would be requesting would allow,
would be allowed to build the ... the enhanced components of the park? Or does it have
to playa role specifically to the ADA compliant component, which is ... seems like that's
what their mission is.
MR. YOKOUCHI: That's right. No, so whatever it is .. .in due respect to Ms. Rouse and her
people, the, our designer, her name is Jean Sheppard(?). And she has a national
reputation for playgrounds and is one of the first advocates for safety and for the
handicap. So she's a designer that's been doing this all her life. So I don't know some of
the objections that this group have, but we have this person doing the design for us. And
we, naturally, want to do that part correctly because the whole ...thrust in, of building
this playground is to making sure that it's handicap accessible. Now when we say
"accessible", it's not gonna be 100 percent 'cause there's some handicap people that it's
very difficult to do the kind of things that would make it accessible for them. But
hopefully, we can get far, far more than whatever has been done up 'til now in this State.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any further questions for Mr. Yokouchi? Hearing none,
thank you. And forgive us for making you go back and forth.
MR. YOKOUCHI: Oh, thank you-CHAIR KANE: You're wearing a, you're wearing our carpet out over there ... (laughter) . ..
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MR. YOKOUCHI: .. . {laughter} . .. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Yokouchi.
MR. YOKOUCHI: Excuse me, when I said all the volunteers that she mentioned that have not
continued...there--and I mentioned the three key individuals that I was depending on.
But since then, two of them has come back. And the third one has been away, and I've
been away. So we haven't been able to get together. But two of the three are with us
again. So ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
· .. Members, if you don't mind, I have a couple questions for Mr. Matsui, and then
I'll. . .I'll provide more opportunity for questions, if I may? Mr. Matsui, I know in your
comments, that you stated for the 714,000 dollars--and I believe it was in response to
Member Johnson's question--that that would adequately fund the completion of the
proposed project. And now when the discussion of the 300,000 comes into view or
monies that we would possibly be available to us for the grant, you talked about
additional items that may be incorporated. So now you need to explain--what does the
714,000 pay for, and if there are additional monies ...this body's interest may be to not
spend the full 714. Or if we do decide to spend the full 714 with an understanding that
more money may come later or during this process, what additional items are you folks
looking at? Or are you gonna be looking at not spending the whole ... County... amount?
Help us understand. Provide some clarity where you're at 'cause you gave us kind of two
different answers there.
MR. MATSUI: Oh... you know, when we first. .. designed the facility, you threw [sic} in... you
do like a wish list, you do like what you really want, you know, if you had all the money
in the world. And then ...then you do some engineer's estimates on what it's gonna cost.
And, and so you go through that process and then you start setting priorities on what is
absolutely necessary, what are the basic components for this playground to achieve what
we're trying to do. And a lot of things start ... you start pulling that out. And, and ... you
know, funds were limited. So what, the 714 is a basic playground. You know,
something that would stand alone but ...
· .. you know, without a lot of the other, some of the items that, that we had wanted to
put in but because of budget constraints, we're not doing. You know, one of the items
we're cutting back on is, is a section of sidewalk that would've ...was not really
necessary for the playground, but would've enhanced ...
· .. the whole playground where, where you would have the opportunity to walk around
the whole playground instead of just getting from Point A to Point B. But, you know,
that, that section of sidewalk, we .. .looked at eliminating because of limited funds. You
know, stuff like picnic tables ... you know, we're cutting back on those, too. We're just
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gonna provide the bare essentials. Landscaping... even some of the play equipment, we
took those out--which we had wanted to put in--because oflimited funds ... (end a/tape,
start 2A) . .. You know, it's not that you know ...we're gonna build, you know ...what
should I say, if, if you don't give us the 714, that we would still be able to do it. You
know? And we're looking at 714 is the budget that we set to build the basic playground.
Ifwe get more money, you know, we certainly can use it. But with 714, that's the basic
playground. I, I don't know if that's clarification enough.
CHAIR KANE:
Okay.
The other question I have is are you familiar with the
DCAB ... document review and technical assistance where they point out where the
project doesn't meet the minimum design requirements as set forth in HRS 103-5? You
have that information? Are you prepared to respond to the ...to the observations that
they made in that November 16th ••• document?
NOTE:

Very long silence while Mr. Matsui review the document.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. MATSUI: '" Well, I can try and go through each one. Uh ...
CHAIR KANE: Uh, before you do that. .. are you prepared to adequately respond ...
. . . that would satisfy the concerns as far as is it, you folks are intending to make
adjustments so that it would be compliant, since it's being observed by the Disability and
Communication Access Board that they're not? Are you folks prepared to respond that
you can make it compliant in these specific areas that they note?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And does that take into account the 714,000 dollar figure that you
requested prior to this date and this technical review document that pointed out these
defi ci enci es?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, we would still be able to stay within the 714.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Members, the Chair yields. Is there further questions? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you very much. Mr. Matsui,
good afternoon. Just wanted to follow-up on one of the statements you, you made a little
bit ago regarding the project to be built in phases. Can you tell me what the project, the
amount of phases, the number of phases and what the actual completion date could be?
MR. MATSUI: What I meant was ... you know when, when you're ...building the project, you
know, you're gonna do certain elements at a certain time. It's, I'm not, it wasn't, by
"phasing" I wasn't meaning it would be "Phase 1" and then three years later we'd do
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"Phase 2". What I'm saying is that. .. the initial project that we're doing, you need to
break up certain elements.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And that would be based on primarily because you've
got a volunteer force of skilled labor and.. .I don't know what an, a projected timetable
might be, that you're looking at for this particular project.
MR. MATSUI: We're looking at like a March to June ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: March to June ...
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and in antIcIpation of that completion, the
Department is also anticipating maintenance cost that'll. .. the Department will have to
incur for the additional park as well?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct. Urn ...
· .. pretty much... you know, that area is already been, being irrigated, and you know,
we're maintaining it. It's not gonna be as heavily used as when the playground, you
know, 'cause there's more--litter pick up, I would think that would be the
major... additional work that we need, is the additional labor, uh, litter. Because you
know, it's already grassed, it's already, we got trees there. We're maintaining it already.
So... you know, from that standpoint, from the landscaping standpoint, I don't see that
much of an increase. But. . .litter would be the biggest ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Matsui. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Members, in this area?
· .. On this particular item?
· .. Any final thoughts, Members, before the Chair gives you folks a recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Recommendation?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair is gonna call for a recess first. We'll take our
afternoon first break. Time now is 2:40. We'll reconvene at 2:50, Members. A
ten-minute break is adequate for your personal needs?
COUNCILMEMBER _ _ _ : Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we'll reconvene at 2:50. We are in recess .. . (gavel). ..
RECESS:

2:40 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:55 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel) . .. We'd like to reconvene the Council's Budget and Finance
Members, welcome back from
Committee meeting for December 5th , 2005.
your...recess. At this point, before the Chair makes his recommendation to the body for
its consideration, I'd like to recognize Ms. Traci Fujita Villarosa, Corp. Counsel.
Ms. Villarosa?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to point out something. Both
the Budget and the Bond bills have in the title for this appropriation "Boundless
Playgrounds" and then "Pa Pa'ani" in parenthesis. Because I, I. .. kind of was concerned
when I heard from statements from Pat Matsui earlier that the Pa Pa'ani group may be
pulling out of this project. That being the case .. .I just wanted to point out to Council
that, the Committee that right now, you know, this project is linked, it, it's a Boundless
Playground and Pa Pa'ani playground together. And there may be a problem with the
title of this appropriation if one of them, if Pa Pa'ani pulls out. So the Committee may
wanna consider revising this title in both the Bond and the Budget bills.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members ... and just to verify with Mr...Matsui
that the location of this project is currently at the old horseshoe ring. Is that correct?
And if you can, please respond.
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members ...the Chair is gonna recommend approval of the request for
714,000 and that we will amend the title .. .in the, in the ...uh.. .in the Bond
Authorization as well as in the ordinance--that instead of having "Boundless
Playgrounds", in parenthesis "Pa Pa'ani", that that would be changed to "Keopuolani
Playground", and then in parenthesis "Old Horseshoe Ring". And that way we have a
site-specific area. As you, as you know, this project is vary far along and if there's gonna
be any type of change--which we don't anticipate any change and have been assured that
there's not gonna be a change--but if there is, they'd be dealing with some massive
grading and other sites and that this money would not be close. So that's where the Chair
is. But before we accept any type of motion, I'll recognize Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, if you're gonna refer to the, the horseshoe area, it was
called the "Horseshoe Pitching Courts".
CHAIR KANE: If you can state that again, please-- 25 -
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah-CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Horseshoe Pitching Courts.
CHAIR KANE: Pitching Courts?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Or the Horseshoe Courts. No, Pat, what was the sign that
was there? I, I think that's what the official name of it was.
CHAIR KANE: Horseshoe Pitching Courts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Okay? Members ... Chair's recommendation is to approve the request--both the
bill for an ordinance amending Fiscal Year '06 Budget, as well as the bill amending the
ordinance, Bill Number... Ordinance Number 3280, Bill Number 36 relating to the
issuance of General Obligation Bonds. The amount is 714,000. The Chair is concurring
with that request. And that the name in both areas be changed from Boundless
Playgrounds, parenthesis Pa Pa'ani, to ... Keopuolani Playgrounds ... and in parenthesis
Horseshoe Pitching Courts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and I believe, I'm sorry if,
I--Molina or Tavares. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Flip the coin, Mr. Tavares--uh, "Mr. Tavares" ... (laughter) . ..
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me. Mr. Molina is the second-er of the motion. We are in discussion.
Mr. Hokama, any comments?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Chairman, as you have mentioned, this is a project that. .. a few
years ago was brought forward to a earlier Budget and Finance Committee. And that
sitting Council at that term also supported... the concept. I believe the comments that we
have ...made, been made aware of, I would... be confident that our Departments--both
legal and Parks Department. .. will help ensure full compliance with whatever
requirements is placed on the County to provide adequate accessibility to all our young
people and park users. So I'm very happy this afternoon to continue to support
the ...bond request for the financing of this park to become a reality. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion, Members? Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ... and, and this is really, perhaps, out of character with
my support for parks, because I do support this concept. But. . .1 think that because this
has changed, at least from what originally...was gonna be a joint venture, and that was
something that I really supported because I think that it had the capability to also address
the annual maintenance ... rather than setting up a trust fund, which was another concept
that had been floated earlier, to actually help take care of our parks. My biggest concern
is that we have parks--and I'm gonnajust use Napili Park Tot Lot as one example. We
have a park that has been in the works for over 20-some years and it's still not done. The
Tot Lot is not completed.
. . . And...when I look at the money for that, and originally I thought that a portion of the
money that was gonna be utilized for the Boundless concept could have very easily been
used for the Tot Lot for West Maui and... other parks ...because that was the whole
buy-in--or at least that was my understanding--plus, the money that was coming from
other outside grant money. For me .. .I totally support this idea and it really bothers me
that I can't right now. And I'm not. .. you know, I don't feel good about it. But in the
form that it's in, with so many questions, still unanswered in my mind ... about the
operations... who's gonna pay for what, who's gonna maintain it, the things about the
handicapped accessibility still looming .. .and. .. some of the people really being
concerned from the community that were originally whole-heartedly behind this.
Community playgrounds are well cared for because the people buy-in, there's a
participation. That's the whole reason why, I think, that the Leathers' concept is really
supported. So for me, Mr. Chair. .. unless these kinds of answers and unless this kind of
information.. .is available.. .it's half done for me. It's ...this big, giant unanswered
question hanging out there. So ... the present form that it's in, the way that this is right
now, I just can't go there. I'd love to, but because of other things that were stated when
this project first came forward, I'm not gonna be able at this time, to support this
particular funding request. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further discussion on this item, Members? The
floor is open for discussion.
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... Hearing none, Members, the Chair will call for the vote. All in favor, signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let the record show we have seven "ayes"; one "no", Ms. Johnson; and
one "excused", Ms. Anderson.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

Councilmember Johnson.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. And, Members, I'm sorry. With any objections,
would, this would include the filing of the communication.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. And we've included the filing. Mr. Matsui,
thank you for your presence this afternoon. And Mr. Buck. .. thank you very much.
Members, we're moving on .
. . . We have Item Number 56, retention limits for insurance programs.
ITEM NO. 56:

RETENTION LIMITS FOR INSURANCE PROGRAMS (C.c. No. 05-342)

CHAIR KANE: I believe we have our Finance and Deputy Finance Directors available this
afternoon, as well as, I believe ... well, for our next item we'll have Mr. Okumura.
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. . . Members, what we have before us ...we are in receipt of County Communication
05-342 from our Finance Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an
ordinance amending Section 3.64.030, Maui County Code, relating to Maui County
insurance program retention limits. And the purpose of the proposed bill is to increase
the maximum property and liability insurance deductible that the Director of Finance may
purchase from 500,000 to a million dollars. Members, we have with us this afternoon our
Director and Deputy Director of Finance, Mr. Kalbert Young and Mr. Wayne Fujita.
Before I offer the floor to them, any opening remarks from our Budget Director,
Mr. Ginoza? Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: . . . Excuse me. . .increasing the retention limit may provide significant
reductions in the ever-increasing insurance premium cost. The increase will allow the
flexibility needed to evaluate the cost savings versus the increased risk, depending on the
financial resources of the County, to find additional. .. to fund additional share of the
County's portions of losses. We respectfully request your favorable consideration for
this amendment.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
Department of Finance?

Mr. Young, additional openmg remarks from the

MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members. Only to say that the purpose
of this ordinance will allow for a greater sense of flexibility in terms of the County
looking for its ... facilitating its insurance program. As many of us know from our
personal experiences, the ability to have some flexibility in terms of the amount of
deductible we're willing to ... each individually willing to carry, allows for a lot of
program shopping and cost savings for each of us. The same was said for our County
program. To increase the deductible limit that is currently 500,000 in the Maui County
Code up to 1 million dollars is not to say that our insurance program will hit that limit on
all programs that we ...that we will purchase for. However, it will give the County the
flexibility to look at different cost structures, in terms of how much risk we are willing to
assume. This has been made more sensitive given the recent events in the Gulf
Coast. .. during this past holiday...this past hurricane season in which insurance costs are
already projected to increase quite substantially in the, in the property area. Your
favorable consideration on this item will allow for, again, a lot of flexibility on the part of
our insurance program, as well as look for a level of efficiency...to provide the best risk
coverage that the County can afford. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the floor is open for questions. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much for your opening statement. The
deductible that we look at, based on the materials that you've handed out, that is a "per
occurrence" deductible?
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MR. YOUNG: Yes. For the ... of course, there is different insurance programs that are provided
by companies that are interested in bidding, on providing us coverage. But for the most
part, they all are on a per-occurrence basis.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And do you have the statistical information as to how
many incidents we had over the past year and how many times we actually reached the
deductible threshold?
CHAIR KANE: '" Mr. Fujita?
MR. FUJITA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Johnson, I'll response [sic} to the question on
history. Um .. .1 looked back at the past ten years and the County has had a 500,000
dollar retention limit. .. and the Committee ...we probably understand that better as a
deductible. In the past ten years, we had only... two liability claims what exceeded over
500,000--1998, we paid about 866,000; and in 1999, we paid 608,000 on two claims.
And on the property side, the most recent one we had in Wailuku gym, I think it was in
2003, which was 150,000 claim. So there's a low amount. .. of occurrences of the high
amounts of claims .
. . . It might be interesting to note that in 1990, that the County had a study done for a
recommendation on the retention limits. And at that time, it was recommended for a
500,000 dollar limit. And this recommendation was done because of a analysis of all the
claims in the past decade. And since then, the County has experienced a lot of inflation.
And ...we have also put in an Emergency Fund a couple years ago that sort of. .. offsets
this need for retentions. And ... the best way that I can explain it is that this Emergency
Fund started off with 4 million. Then last year we added about a million-and-a-half
more. And these funds in the Emergency Fund is to be used for either financial or
national ...
. . . oh, not "national", I'm sorry, it's wrong. It's "natural"-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Disasters.
MR. FUJITA: --disasters ... (laughter) . .. Right. So ... should we need to fund a claim, I would
guess the first source we would be looking to is for an approval from Council to fund the
money through this Emergency Fund. And because we did not really have this kind of
fund before, that it's a... a new source, and that. .. and it actually provides a strong
supplement for these deductibles. The concept for deductibles of an agency such as the
County is that we fund ... as much as we can through our... our own resources. And in a
sense, we are self-insured. And ... for the past few decades, we've been self-insured
entirely on workers' comp and auto. And the concept behind being self-insured is that
it's ... much more cost-effective for us to spend the money ourselves and not for us to add
on the overhead of insurance companies and the brokers. I'm sure that you know
that. .. that insurance companies don't lose money 'cause they hire these actuaries that
figure out what is the real cost over the long term. They look at the probabilities and
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assign a price into the various risks. And then above that, they add on, say, another
15 percent for their overhead and some for the broker's commissions. So for us ...the
County of Maui, the concept of self-insurance is that whenever possible ...that we would
be avoiding this insurance because of the extra overhead and fund the deductibles and
retentions ourselves. And since 1990, because of inflation... this Administration believes
that raising the retention limits that is in the ordinances right now at 500,000 should be
raised up into a million. And also because we have the Emergency Funds, too.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, if I may, Mr. Chair. The, the other. .. question would
be because you're looking at this, basically, as self-insurance and you're looking at the
past experience as being very minimal over the last ten years, I believe, as to what we've
actually collected on, my question .. . (laughter) . .. would be have you looked at raising
it beyond the one million dollars and looked at the cost benefit analysis on that basis
because we do have this other special fund?
MR. FUJITA: ... Yes, Ms. Johnson ...
. . . I have in two parts on that question. The first part is that we looked at comparables.
The State of Hawaii has a 3.5 million dollar retention limit. For Honolulu, it's at
2 million. The Board of Water Supply in Honolulu is at half-a-million, and the County of
Kauai is about a quarter million. So that puts the County of Maui, when you compare
these relative sizes and activities, at about a million. So when we just look at the
comparables, that points to a million dollar deductible. On the other side of the cost and
benefits--if the million dollars is really a good number--we recently had insurance
quotation for the coming year. And there was a savings if we were able to raise that
deductible which is at the half-a-million dollar. And if we raised it up to a million, we
would save just about, like, 200,000. And this is pretty tight market nowdays because of
things like Katrina and these things that are occurring all over the world. The year
before ... when we received the quotations on the insurance, the same difference between
the coverage that we have at the half-a-million, and we asked them for a quote at
750,000. For that year, the savings on the premium was about a quarter million dollars.
So it has been very good. And that's why we think that the million dollars is appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Did you also look at, like, 1.25 million or 1.5 million and
what would the additional savings be? Because, I mean, if you just ... (laughter) . .. ran
the calculation out, if we're paying it and if the likelihood of a claim is so minimal
anyway in terms of real property damage, I mean, you can't really do much. I mean, if
you can't build a playground .. .(laughter). .. for, you know, 750,000 .. .I guess what I'm
looking at is the real construction cost because we're talking about property.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Johnson, actually in looking at whether the deductibles could actually
be raised higher, you know, of course it would be to our benefit on the cash-up-front side
to have a higher deductible. But we looked at the comparables for other entities in the
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State of Hawaii relative to their asset size, their deductible coverage. And from that
we're, you know, we were, felt comfortable that the one million deductible was
something that was conservative, that risk management-wise you know we, we could still
afford a lot of coverage under our self-insurance program. Definitely the, in, the
Emergency Fund also went to provide a lot of confidence there as well. But we, we are
only asking for the ordinance to be amended up to one million dollar deductible as a
conservative measure ... not to shock the conscience of the Council Members to ask for a
larger deductible or to give any scare that the County would have to cover a, you know,
handle a much higher level and load of its own risk. So we feel comfortable that from a
conservative standpoint, the one million dollar is a very fair and reasonable limit to ask
for.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and my only reason for asking that is I just
wanted to know what the cost differential would be in terms of the actual savings if we
went up another 250,000 or if we went up another... you know, to 1.5. Just so that we
would know ...what, what those amounts were.
MR. YOUNG: Yes ...we did not ask for our insurance, you know, bidders to provide any
coverage estimates at the 1.25 million or anything above 1 million... dollars. So we
don't know what the, a specific dollar cost savings would have been. But. .. we
are ... certain that it would be quite considerable--as the difference is from ... from
500,000 to 750 is quite sizable. We, we definitely know that the same proportionate
amount could be said if we were to raise it up to 1.25.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe, would ...you could also help us by telling us ...besides the
savings, what are we paying ... for these premiums at the current level and your
proposed...proposed levels?
MR. YOUNG: ... For the current year, this current fiscal year, we're, we're paying-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: At the half-a-million dollar ...
MR. YOUNG: Yes, right, a the -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" {inaudible} . ..
MR. YOUNG: --half .. .{inaudible} . .. deductible. Our premiums are well ... oh, it's about
900,000. Just to let the Members know that we're currently solidifying the program for
the ... you know, for the upcoming year. And at 500,000 deductible, because of the
Katrina effect as well as some other, you know, events that have occurred in the
insurance industry, that same level of coverage, we're looking at somewhere in the
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neighborhood of about I-point. .. was it 1.4 million, something--l.4 million for the entire
program. So there's, there is some quite sizable difference. And again, it's mostly
because of the, you know, some of the recent current events. What. .. what we found to
be most helpful if we had the flexibility-wise, is that we could diversify the County's
insurance program. If there was a little bit more flexibility in terms of, say, the
deductible where we could have looked for some cost savings in different coverages. But
since the previous policy was already at the 500,000 limit, the current policy that we're
looking to, you know, for the upcoming year, again will also be at the 500,000 deductible
limit unless there's ... you know, this ordinance is revised.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... So ... does the Department annually... update its policy or renew
its policy if we don't enter into a multi-year agreement and then maybe spread out the
premiums over the term of the agreement--like a three-year program, five-year program?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama, as far as I recall from, as, as my tenure and I guess with the
tenure of Mr. Fujita, the County has always undergone an annual policy. So it's, it has
not been multi-year. I'm not sure if there's, if it has anything to do with, like, the
industry offerings or. . .if there's other restrictions. But we've always done it annually.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can we ... consider multi-year agreements or insurance programs?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. FUJITA: ... I believe ... for this year... that it is a one year because the industry has
adjustments for things like Katrina. That the, the market is priced high. And that's,
that's another reason for us to look at the larger deductibles, because it's expensive this
year. But from time to time, we do speak with the insurance specialist and, and our
agents about what they recommend. And from time to time we do consider these
multi-year agreement ... (end a/tape, start 2B) . .. and kinds of policies. For example, on
the errors and omissions or bonds over. .. custody of cash and that kind of thing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that is currently a, an available option for, for the Department
and, and Administration... depending upon the .. .I, I would guess the financial
parameters that those insurance carriers ... need to work through. 'Cause, you know, if
what I heard you share with us, correct, that the County of Maui has basically
not. .. benefited from its, its insurance problem, program because we haven't had ...we've
had, what, two claims in the last ten years we've paid out?
MR. FUJITA: But you know, those-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible due ta interruptian)-MR. FUJITA: --two claims were the ones in excess of half million.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In excess, right. Uh ...
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... It doesn't work like ... automobile insurance, you don't, you have no accidents for
X period, you get preferred status and therefore, you get a better premium rate because
the chance of you utilizing that insurance carrier to pay.. .is minimal compared to,
maybe, a more high-risk area or someone that has ten accidents in five years.

MR. FUJITA: Yeah. No, but there are that sort of adjustments, the retro-adjustments on these
multi-year policies. But from my recollection we have not had that kind of adjustments.
Usually when we go out for insurance, we do stay with a carrier for three or four, five
years. But. . .in recent years, it's strictly been a one-year contract.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... I heard Ms. Johnson, our colleague from West Maui, mention
about the natural disasters. So like this type of policy and something like Montana
Beach...we would not have the .. .'cause... and Chairman, we understand some of the
confidentiality regarding the case so if I'm threading, you or Corporation Counsel needs
to caution me, please. Those kind of situations would not be covered by our policy?
... Whereby there's a settlement of a dollar amount more than the deductible ... so ...that
wouldn't be carried under our pro, policy, insurance program? Or it would be covered?
MR. FUJITA: That particular claim on Montana Beach--and there's another one which
insurance companies are-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER Disputing.
MR. FUJITA: --at the moment, are denying full coverage because it's out of the scope of the
normal operations. And... on the County's side ...we are ... protesting...that claim that
the insurance companies are saying maybe they won't be including that in our coverage.
But it's still on the fire.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay. Thank you for my opportunity, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further question, Members, regarding the amendment
to the bill, specifically retention limits? We're going from ... a current 500,000 and
request up to a million dollars. And, again, as stated in the opening remarks, it's a
flexibility issue--providing them up to a million dollars. Doesn't necessarily mean that
it's always gonna be a million dollars.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it's "up to". Yeah? Mr. Hokama, further questions?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one, one question please, Chairman. Is there some kind of
reporting mechanism whereby you could give this Committee ... a once-a-year status,
maybe either to, during budget deliberations or, or. .. uh .. .I, I'm not sure when you do
your RFPs and, and the timing of these renewals for, through the County, but I'd be
interested to see how it's fluctuated on the premiums ... over whatever period you have,
Mr. Young and Mr. Fujita.
MR. YOUNG: Certainly. We, we ...Department of Finance, we wouldn't have any problem
with providing you ... a historical trend of what type of coverage we've, we've had for
what premium price. Certainly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, again, if you could add those ... claims or, or settlements that
we've gone above where the insurance kicked in. That might be helpful. I, I see merit in,
in what you sharing with us this afternoon. But, you know, I'd like to have that also
supported by your documentation, please. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. YOUNG: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you have ...
. . . do you intend for the Committee to receive an annual report, so is that something that
we can draft an ordinance amendment to ... to require that as an annual report? Or do you
wanna just see ... from-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I wasn't sure-CHAIR KANE: --from start 'til now-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Chairman-CHAIR KANE: --kind of a point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --if there's something already within the Code that. . .if the, maybe
there's another report that the Finance Department puts out that shares this information
and we just need to be directed to the appropriate documentation. But I would think it
would be helpful to us. You know, we talking ...
. . . very reasonable amounts of money. I, I believe I heard something just less than a
million for the annual premium. But I, for me, I would be interested to see.
CHAIR KANE: We'll follow up with... a draft letter signed by your Chair to the Director
requesting some information. And based on the response, then we can determine whether
we can move forward with either. .. a request for an annual report or we can actually go
as far as doing an ordinance amendment requiring a, an annual report. And, again, like
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you said, there might be something already there that has the information, it's just a
matter of us being directed or, or having that information highlighted within that report.
So we can work with Staff to get that information requested by and responded to by the
Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions? Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ...while we're going through or at least when I'm
reading through your excess liability explanations in the documentation or the exhibits
that, and has attached ...what we're speaking about now is all of the insurance, including
the reinsurance on all of these levels of coverage? Or is it. .. not ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Fujita?
MR. FUJITA: The ordinance refers to both our property and liability insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And you're advising that currently what we pay
annually for all of our coverages through the County of Maui, everything is roughly
900,000?
MR. FUJITA: The liability portion is about 900,000. This contract that we're negotiating for
this coming year is about. . .is about. .. a million-four-and-change.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But that. .. that, you're only talking about the liability
portion.
What about, let's say, damage to property or... our own property
· . .(laughter) . .. is this excluded or is it included?
MR. FUJITA: That's included.
half-a-million.

And the amount of the property premmm

IS

about a

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so that's 500,000 in addition to roughly the 900,000?
MR. FUJITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
· .. So ...that ...
· .. I just wanted to be clear because, you know, when, when you're looking at this .. .I
guess the other question that I would ask is because statistically we have such a high
deductible, the likelihood of claims is probably less frequent than if we had a lower
deductible ... (laughter) . .. So by playing the devil's advocate, I would ask have you
kept a statistical. .. run of all of the claims and what the average threshold would have
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been so you know what that trigger point is? You know, so if it's .. .if your average
claim is 100,000 dollars and your frequency increases, would it be better for us to pay a
higher premium where there's a more frequent likelihood that we'd be able to collect?
Obviously, what they're gonna do, though, is probably just from utilization, they'll up
our premiums, then. So ... anyway, I'd be really interested to find out where these trigger
points are in terms ofthe average claims and just look at it and see where we're... maybe
we can, I guess, in a different way manage our claims a little bit better. Or at least look at
policies that might incorporate .. .I don't know, a, a little bit different system than the one
that we're using currently. Anyway, but you've not, to my knowledge, you've not done
the other claim statistics. Is that correct?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. FUJITA: ... Yeah .
. . . Every year as a part of this analysis, when we go through auditioners, our premium
quotes, we do have a discussion with the agent on the different sections of coverage and
his recommendation if we should go self-insured in that area or to raise the deductible or
raise the limits, lower the limits, that kind of thing. So that's a discussion that is really
inclusive of the loss histories. When we did the study back in 1990, the highest level of
loss for the ... for the previous decade was at the highest point, a quarter million. Since
that time, with inflation, that number is still less than a half-a-million.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: And since the, the last, say, ten years, we've seen only those ...those only two
liability claims that went slightly above the half-a-million mark.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I, I guess the reason that I'm asking is because
it's always helpful when you look at where most of your claims statistics lie, where are
most of your claims occurring, what's the threshold, and then look at it over time and
what would you have paid out in terms of premiums had you had a deductible that would
have triggered a payment on that claim. And then do that analysis and say, well, you
know, at the end of ten years we're still better off with the higher deductible or we're
better off with a lower deductible where the frequency has increased. So I'm just
looking ... for a monetary or ... (laughter) . .. some kind of analytical. .. basis for making
judgment as to whether you're better off at the higher or lower deductible. Okay.
MR. FUJITA: The next six months, we have other contract. .. that kind of statistical analysis
from ... the current provider, agent, which is Aeon. And they have agreed to do a study
that will be looking at that kind of thing. And we'll include these other recommendations
for risk management. And when we receive that, we'd be glad to share it with the
Council.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I guess, Mr. Chair, my other question would
be because you're not turning in a claim, because you know what your threshold is you
know what your .. .I mean, if you had a 250,000 dollar loss, you're gonna settle that.
Right? So you're not gonna tum in a claim. How would they know, then, unless you're
actually having them track every single incident. Is that what you're doing? You're,
they're tracking all incidents?
MR. FUJITA: We have under agreement with them that for claims that exceed 100,000,
that. .. we immediately at that point. .. start to provide them with the information.
Then... as that, that claim ... goes on through discussions, debates and up through court,
that the insurance company would participate. But once it exceeds the deductible limit,
then the responsibility would then be transferred. But there is a lot of discussion and
communication as soon as it goes above that 100,000 threshold.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Are they requiring you to, in order to track with loss
experience, are they requiring you to report that information so that they know what your
experience is?
MR. FUJITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay .. . {laughter} . .. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further questions on this item, Number 56,
Members, on the bill that's attached to this item?
... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's recommendation.. .is to propose ...to adopt the
proposed bill as submitted and file County Communication Number 05-342.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Molina. Discussion,
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No further discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Any discussions, Members? Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show unanimous with Member Anderson excused.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, we have one final item for this afternoon's
discussion, Item Number 36, interest rate on real property tax bill awards.

ITEM NO. 36:

INTEREST RATE ON REAL PROPERTY TAX APPEAL AWARDS
(C.c. No. 05-229)

CHAIR KANE: Members, we did have a previous discussion on this item and we have made
some adjustments. And what we have before us is a revised proposed bill .. .if you can
take your moment to tum to Item Number 36? Thank you very much, Mr. Fujita, for
your presence this afternoon .
. . . And ...we also have Mr. Lance Okumura who's available as a resource. If he's
needed, we'll call him forward .
. . . Members, we have the revised--excuse me, County Communication 05-229 from the
Director, transmitting a proposed bill to amend the interest rate by taxpayers who win
real property tax appeals from 8 percent to a rate determined by the Director, based on
the average rate of return on the County investments. We have made an adjustment, and
we have received by correspondence dated October 7, 2005 from Corporation Counsel, a
revised proposed bill that would allow, would amend the interest rate earned by taxpayers
who win real property tax appeals from 8 percent to a rate based on the average rate of
return on County investments during the previous calendar year. The revision, as you can
see is instead of having the Director make the determination, that the determination
would be based on the average rate of return on the County investments during the
previous calendar year.
Opening remarks by our Direct. .. Director of Finance.
Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Only that this measure--to refresh the Members'
memory--would go a long way in terms of making more equitable the County's
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responsibilities to pay on these real property tax appeal claims to something more
comparable to what the County earns on its own monies. To reduce it from, where it
previous was 8 percent in the current ordinance to a rate that is based on what the County
actually earns on its investments. Which, at the present time, is considerably less than
8 percent. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. It's open for questions.
· .. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Young. You
have any, you know, history as to why it was set at 8 percent instead of what, what you're
proposing here today?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Molina. I, I don't know the legislative history of why the
amount was set at 8 percent. It, it could, in... speculation, it could be either related to
HRS, statutory provisions, or it might have been a historical, a nominal amount that was
more common for the time. It could also be that 8 percent rate of return, given when the
ordinance may have been first constructed, may have been a reasonable rate of return that
the County may have earned. I think we can all remember when CDs earned 8 percent.
It's only in recent memory that the savings rate is so low. And so, I think this makes it
more equitable for the County, as well as for taxpayers as well because it sets a rate
that. .. that they could expect to get elsewhere as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Department?

Any further discussion or, excuse me, questions to the

· . . Hearing none, Members, the Chair's recommendation is to approve the revised
proposed bill that is before this body and to file County Communication 05-229.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares. Discussion?
· .. Hearing none, Members, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show unanimous, Member Anderson excused.

- 40 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

December 5, 2005

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Young, thank you very much for your presence. Mr. Ginoza, thank you
very much. Members, we have finished the Committee's business for the day. Any
announcements by any of the Members? Seeing none, Members, thank you very much.
Time now is 3:41. This Budget and Finance Committee meeting for December 5th is
adjourned .. .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

3:41 p.m.

Budget and Finance Committee
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